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RELATION OF SURROUNDING TO STRUCTURE
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lst Papish Unitarian-Universalist Church
Westford Street

Altered:

Many changes have been made through the years in both the Sanctuary
and the vestry (basement), In 1887 the basement was refitted for use
as a vestry; the original entrance to the hall was retained, but a new
one was made by the addition of a stairway from the narthex,

The selectmen's room was enlarged to become the kitchen, and a stage
was added at one end of the vestry, In 1888 the church itself was
renovated. In 1915 the interior was made over In colonial style. The
kitchen was remodeled during the 1960's,

Attachments:

On Dec, 18, 1955 the ground-breaking ceremony was held for the Sunday
School building and Children's Chapel (attached to the rear of the
Sanctuary)e. This addition was dedicated Sept. 23, 1956,

Two one-story brick bédler rooms (the old one now 1s a part of the
kitchen) extend from the basement on the Littleton Road side.

Entrance:

6 granitev steps lead to an inset doorway with a window (top half
stained glass) flanked on each side by an ioniec column and a plain door.

Ornament: sign on the right side of the front

"First
Congrogatlonal
Socilety
Unitarian
Organized Nov, 13, 1655
The first Meeting-House was
bullt about 1660, the second
in 1712, the tird in 1792,
The present Meeting House
was built in 1842,"



Druus
Hiast,
P, 48

1680
Hist,
Pe 537

1671

FIRST COHGREGATIONAL CHURCH

CALLS TO CEURCH
1359, fowmd amon Tow:1 Charuzes
"For tle paiment for a drum to Henry Parwell - f 3-5.0"

QLD CHURCH BELL

Voted: "Ther shold bee a bell bousht for the Towmns use and that ther
shold be so much land sould out of The Common as will purchese the Bell,
and hanze him in the mettinz house, That is to say if t e toms stock
in hand will not doe it, then to sell the land,”

The date on the bell was 1682,

The old bell was sold and went to Tymisboro for a school house,
Sold to Cyrus Baldwin,
See Allens Hist, p. 26)

NEW CHURCH BELL

Town appropraitcd £100 to purchase an Enslish Bell of 700 wei ht
and"han: the saim," (Hist, p. 680)

Tovni coasented to have the new bell rm3y at twelve o'clocs day and
nine in the evenin: at t..e expense of those vho desired it,

When the church was burned, the old bell purchased in 1793 was
melted by the fire,

A nuber of small bells were made frou this metal and sold to
reise money for the ohurch (sec Hist, p. 638)

CLUBS

It was ordered by the Selectme:n that "Ever; male person within owr
towne above the age of fiveten years shall provid a jood clube of
fouer or five foot in lenzbth with a knobe in the end and to bringe
the sause to the meetiny house ther to leave the same untill ocation
fore use of itv"
9ined the nawe of the Rest By
Sam Ada.i8
Clerie,"
(Hist. pe 61)



FIRST CONREGATIONAL SOCIETY
REV, JOHN FISKE

Karried widow of Major Henchmen, Elizabeth,
Died in 1676 (Allen's Hist, p. 124)
Had been feiling for a year,

For several Suadays was cerried to church in a chair and preached
sittinz,

Rev, Thomas Clarke was hired o help out,
(See Hist, p, 65)

Prepared a cetechisa which was printed at the expense of the church,
One was in the Library of the late George Livermore of Cambrid e,
which was bouzht by t:e Lenox Library of New Yori< for $1053 At the
avction sale of t ¢ Livermore Collection,

The Title: "The Waterinz of the Qlive Plant in Christs Gardens or a
short catechism for the first Entraisce of our Chelasford children,"

Hist, p. 23

GempiledAb-y Miss Francos Andrews
Circa 1943



1679

Church land for the first meatinz house in chelusford,

Nov, 22, At Town Meeting it was voted thobd 0 acren of meadow land
and 30 sores of plowable land, and s house 38 f£t, in lenzth and

20 o4, in width, with 3 fire places, chluneyas bullt of brigk or sione,
be provided for the miniater, Rev., John Piske, He o be paid fifyy
powds for tie first year and his maintensace "as the Lord shall
sneble ws for the future®, ,

See Hiﬂ‘ta Py 12*'19Q

Tag Mindstry Land is recorded as follows:

“ihe 3lst of Mey, 1679, by the Pownes Gifte and Order wes leid out
w0 te winlstry and for that only use for ever in Chelusford to say
Thirty Acres of Upland and 8wa: 8 bee it zore or les and ig bounded
Eest by the bizhway bo the iwraining field, South upon & zreat rock,
Borth by the lend of ¥r, Coraslius Welldow, with s straite line Lo a
steie with s heepe of stones about it which is a Westerly corner of
John Bates his land and 8o of o straite line to a pine neare sionsy
brooike path, Horth Wes:, bownded upon the Towne Comiaon upland to a
blask osite and froa thence in e stralse line ¢ a Red Ooze neave the
land that wes ziven by the Towne to Mr, Plske mnd his somne John
Pisice and fro.: thence to a great Rock southerly all waios provided
ther bee a profitient carie way left beciwine the land of the abovs
sayd Fiske aad the fore mentioned land, which way is %o bee the
Foure polles in breadth, In witnes heare wnbto wee the CGouniiy
aponbed fo sobtte hear in have seet % owr hands the dgy and years

shove seyd,
Willia: Underwood
John Piske

The Records of the Church were kept by Rev. John Fiske fro:

They were fouwid by David Pulsifer of Boston at the home of Rev,
Piske's grandeson Sanvel (son of Moses) in Sale:, Mass, Mr, Puls:ifer
made 2 co.y for Rev, Dr, Dexber whioch is in Yale Tniversity Library,
After ¥Mr, Pulsifer died the book cawe into possession of Dr, Sasuel A.
Green of the Mass, Hist, Soe¢, Ir, Green copied and published parts of
the records in 1398 entiiled "Extracts froa the nobe book of the

Rev, John Fiske - L657-L1675"

Chelasford Eagle Dec, 15, 1883,

Hist, De 19

RNo record of the Plst Meepiny House, asee Hist, p, 17.

The old meediny house was repairdd "both oubtaide to keep ou: rain and
snow and alsc withinside suc . Inbarrement as may be needful and in
pardicular o lon: table from one allee to another,"

8ee hist, P a7,



1712

1838

First Congregational Society PAGE TWO

It was voted to build a new meeting house and that it should be
"fifty tow foote in len:th aad forty tow foois in bredth and

twenty four foot between joynts, 25 foot spar snd & terit o hanz
the bell in*

The old house wes not to Yo defaced wmbil the new ve fit o meet in,
Hist, p. 875)

July 1 The bullding was ascepted by the Town and a conufbtee
appointed ®4o geat the new meetin: house.”

Vomen sat on one side, men on the other,

Hiss, P 678)

The meeting bouse wes repaired,

May 13 (Proa Bridgzes Diary) "oblizwd, by reason of ye meeting house
its lenkinz, to preach in ye pew all day." ’
(mﬁta @t ?92

Mey 15 (Bridges Diary Hist, .
"Pulpit wet, Omdbed 3&adinéﬂ i

0ot. 16 "afraid to stay bo presch the pulplt being so west and
danmp by resson of rain,®

(I"ﬁ-.at:. Pe 53@)

The new house was decided to be 64 x 30 fH. To be 12 £, loager
aad 2% inshes wider, Windowe $o be semiecirole, There was $o be
a steople and a "vain or weather coci on the top of the aspeirt.
Tnderpinndng to be of hewed stone, two fi, above the mround, One
tier of pews arowmd the zallery and two rows on each side the broad
alley. 52 sq, pews on the fldor each 6% by 4% £4, in size,

To have bamnisterr, not to bo painited.

The cushion on the new pulpit was VIEESDNIEH covered with balge
which cosi ten shillingzs.

The whole trimuing for the pulpit cost £ 13.

Apr. 7. Finished pulling down the old house,

Hey Bejas raising the new house, finighed the last of Hay
{Riss, p, 794)

March 14, The church was burned, (p. 535)

Apeil 13. The new meeding house was dedicaied, The basement was
buil¥ of briek, %o be used s a Towa Hall, (wabil 1379)

The Towa at this tise hes no Town Hall, Wes built in 1879)
The Church wes removated and rededisaied,

Vas made over in Col nial style.

Sce Hist., P, 68%56)



FIRST CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH PG, T

GIFTS TO THE CHURCH

o 65
774

1842

Rev, John Fiske: gzave a silver cup, wmarked on the bodtom
“J .F.L;c .C .“

(John Piske Lezacy to the Church of Chelmsford)

CQup nmade by John Dixwell, Boston, Goldsmith,

Rev. Sauson 8toddard: Gave a 8ilver Tenkard t: the Church
seeAllens His%, p. 118)

Joshua Henshaw Esq, of Boston presented a "very elejaat" folio
Bible to tic Church t> be read on the Loxd's Day.

This was rebound at the ex.ensme of the church in 1812,

Weas Printed, On thick wire wove aper in larze fair type,.
Exoels eny edition of the Rible,

(See Allea's Hist. p. 51-52),

70 THE HISTORICAL SO

Holy Bible , illusirated, Presented to the Churel in 1842 by
Oliver larc.. Esq. of Lowell, "
Eyuns of the Spdrit

Leather bindiny., Pulpit copye.

Coupiled by Wiss Francee Andrews

Circe 1945



PIRST CONIRESATIONAL SOCIEDY PAGE THREE

Tp o 18%0 Town suporied charch
Gove the land
Built the Chwroh and Paid the Minister,

In 1331 The Parish woted to choose its owm officers and
ransact its business,

List of Ministers Rev, John Plake 1553-1676
(In Weanaz 154281553)
Rev, Thomas Olerk 1677=-1704
Rev, Bampson Stoddard 1708-1740
Rev, Ebenezer Bridze 1741-1792
Rev, Hezekish Packaxrd 1793-1302
Rev, Wilkes Allen 1803.133%2
Rev, Willien Andrews 1836.183%8

R-v, John Lowis Ruspell 18331842



1792 Unitarian Church

Diary of William Bentley, D.D., Vol. 2, pg. 4O-L1

"The Father (Ebenezer Bridge, Sr.), who above fifty years has sustained
the office of the minister, last year deceased. 'he 0ld house was abanadoned
when its old possessor left it. Proposals were desired to erect one upon a
better plan. Gen. B. with other inhabitants engaged to erect one for 1000L,
& the old House worth 30L or to receive 400L & the privilege of selling all
the pews and seats. The last offer was accepted. 'he house is compleatly
finished, the' not upon any consistent plan. It is underpinned with stones
split & faced from a quarry in Westford, some of which a foot in height are
between 9 & 10 feet in length. The frame of the whole building is of oak,

& the posts of the l'ower are above 60 feet high. The house is painted well
without, & the Steeple is more modern than such as are commonly found. [lhe
Tower is joined to the Steeple by a belfry yet destitute of a Bell, but they
have not a pleasing effect together. The interior part of the house is painted
upon the front of the Galleries & the pulpit, & there is gilding below the
pannels in chinese work. The Canopy is pendant, the window executed in the
Italian, but not bold enough for a good effect. T'he roof is little arched,
but the work under the galleries arched boldly. There is a swell in the
front gallery which has a good effect, & would have a greater, provided the
gallery was but half the depth. fhe pews are square & inconvenient but as
the pulpit has two flights of steps, & the long seats open before'the pulpit,
the eye forgives the flat pannels in the projection of that principal object
in a Meeting House. The front porch, if a porch can belong to a large &
elegant building, has double pilasters on each side of the door in front, &
the same on each side of the window over it. If pilasters belong to porches,
when no columns belong to the House. le forgot the burying ground, while
dinner was preparing {(at the Railroad House) & we did not see it to be near,
till we entered our carriages.”



ev. Wilson Waters, "History of Chelmsford "

680: The Meeting House of 1792
"In 1784, some began to agitate for a new meeting-house, and plans
were drawn. i'he next year the vote was 73 to 7 in favor of the old
site.

In 1790, it was voted to build a new meeting-house 54 feet
square. This was changed to 64 by 46 feet, and in 1792 the final
decision was to have it 64 by 48 feet. There was to be a projection
12 feet in length and 23 inches wide. The windows in the gallery
were to be 'Simecurcle.' There was to be a steeple, and a 'vain or
wheather cock on the top of the speir.' The underpinning was to be
of newed stone two feet above the ground.

While this was building, the meetings were held in the hall at
the tavern of Oliver Barron (2 Chelmsford St. site). There was to be
one tier of pews around the gallery, and two rows on each side of
the broad alley, and 52 square pews on the floor, each 63 by 4%
feet in size. They were to have bannisters, and were not to be
painted. 'he cushion on the new pulpit was covered with baize which
cost 10 shillings. The whole trimming for the pulpit cost Li15. It
was voted that the lfown raise L4000 gnd the old meeting house and
the pews in the new, except the minister's pew, for building the
new meeting-house. :

1791. The sum of L300 was voted for the new building to be
built 'on the hill where the 0ld meeting house now stands.'

1793. The Town voted not to hang the 0ld bell in the new
meeting house, and L110 was appropriated to 'purtich' an English

(A1}

bell of seven hundred weight and hang the 'saim.

£89 Description of Meeting House
"The meeting house which burned in 1842 had three large porches, on
the south, east and west. These had staircases to reach the gallery,
which round on three sides, and above this gallery were wall pews.
’'he pulpit was on the north side and the singing seats were opposite
this. The first row was for the men and women singers. 'here was a
men's door and a women's door, and the men and women propbably sat
on opposite sides. Next above the singeré were the men with fiddles
of various sizes, clarionets and other instruments, but the fif was
not allowed. The minister in the pulpit was on a level with the
galleries, and the sounding board, which was shaped like an inverted
‘umbrella, was over his head. I'here were eight steps to the pulpit,

which was handsomely furnished with crimson satin damask. A window
behind it had beautiful curtains. Below the pulpit sat the deacons.



i

About 1830, these were Joel Adams, Noah Spalding (who always sat

in the middle), and Owen Emerson. The stove stood in freat of the

pulpit, and there were two funnels which went around the room. ’he

minister was perhaps as much too warm as the people were too cold.
(fhis information is from a letter of Mrs. Luther Faulkner

to H.S. Perham.)~

Eirst Parish Unitarian Church
N Westford Street

Waters, Page 685=6

"The #iwo denominations (Unitarian & Universalist) could not consciente
iously worship together, but after the burning of the meeting house in
1842, the two united in building the new meeting housee The Universalists
held their services for a time In the Academy builldinge.

There were at this time included in the First Congregational
parish: the First Congregational Church, the Proprietors of the
Chelmsford Centre Meeting House, the First Congrepational Society
and the Union Parilsh,

On the evening ofn the l4th of March, 1842, the meeting house
was discovered to be on fire, and so far had the flames progressed
that all attempts to save it were hopeless, The house with all its
contents, Sunday School library, follo Bible, psalm books and bass
viol were destroyed, and the bell melted by the intensity of the
heat, It was beyond question the work of an incendiary. The neighboring
buildings were saved with great difficultye.

1842, When the present mseting house was erected, the Town buillt
a basement of brick, above ground, which was used as a Town Hall until
the present building was erected in 1879, The basememt cost $1,426,06,
This was used also for public meetings of various kinds and social
gatherings. It was heated by a large stove. When there was a dance
there, the fire was allowed to die down, and, with two sticks of
cordwood under the stove, four men would solemly march out with 1%,
while the orchestre played the Dead March in Saul,

At Town Me eting, the room was often so full that the men had
to adjourn to the common in order to poll the house, the ayes
standing on one side and the noes on the other,

The new house was dedlcated April 19, 1843, The Rev, Henry A,
Miles of Lowell preached the sermon,

The Proprietors of the Chelmsford Centre Meeting House (Eli F.
Webster, Amos Carlton, John C, Bartlett and their associated) were
incorporated in 1843,

March 21, 187&, the steeple blew down, and was restored at
consdderable expense, A few years ago the steeple was struck by
lightning, which followed the chain and weight of the clock on the
interior of one of the columns, which it slightly damaged.

In 1878, the Union Parish was dissolved = and all its assets,
claims and liabilities were transferred to the First Congrepational
Societye

Jgn. 16, 1881, the 225th Anniversary of the establishment of the
First Parish was celebrated, Reve A.M. Sherman, acting pastor, delivered
an historical address.

In 1888, the meeting house was renovated and rededicated,

In 1903, the Reve Ce.A, Alken, grandson of Wlilkes Allen, preached on
the 100the Anniversary of the Ordination of the latter,

In 1915, the Interior was made over 1n colonial style.
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Waters, Page 689

"The four meeting houses were all built on nearly the same site.

Three types of meeting house were erected in New England, The
first were gquare log houses, with clay=filled chinks, steep
thatched roofs, and the beaten earth for floors, Wooden eseme floors
and lath and plaster were luxurfes, We¥ read later of some which were
'lathed on the inside, and so daubed and whitened over worlmanlike,!

The second type was a square wooden building, perhaps unpainted,
with a pyramidal roof, sometimes having a belfrey on the top, like
that at Hingham,

The third type was that fashiloned after the style which bears
the name of Sir Christopher Wren, and which was the prevailing type
in meeting houses after the early part of the 18th century, The
Chelmsford meeting houses of 1792 and 1842 were built in this style."



Village Clock
2 Westford Street
Waters, page 594:

A Company or Assoclatlion was formed January 27, 1877, with
Moses Ce Wilson, presldent, E.XK. Parkhurst, vice president, Henry
Se Perhaw, secretary, and Joseph Reed, treasurer,

Report of the Treasurer of the Village Clock Company

Bills Paid
Howard & Co, for the Clock $275.00
Green and Hagerman 145,02
Mrs, Robinson, for Board 4,00
Cole and Nichols, for weight 20,74
Fiske and Spalding'!s bill Sel3
E.X., Parkhurst, for freight 3430
N.P., Dadmun's bill 11497
Amount of monwy received from all sources 465:61
Balance 1m the hands of the Treasurer 55
Chelmsford, Dec, 24, 1877 Josephk Reed, Treasurer
Received since the above was made 50

The clock was purchased with money subscribed for that purpose,
the amounts ranging from $1 to $25,

Untll 1892, the care of the clock was paild for by subscriptiom.
Since then the Towm has made an appropriation for that purposee The
last offlcers elected were J, Adams Bartlett, president, Joseph E,
Warren, vice president, Harry L. Parkhurst, secretary and

treasurer,
Middlesex North District Registry of Deeds
Copied by Jane Drury
North: Book 169, Page 115 June 19, 1884

Inhabitants of the Town of Chelmsford to First Congregational Society

"We, the inhabitants of the Town of Chelmsford in the County of
Middlesex and Commonwealth of Massachusetts, in consdderation of $100
paid by the First Congregational Society! a religious body corporate
in said Chelmsford, the receipt whereof 1s hereby acknowledged, do
hereby remise, release, and forever quitclaim unto the sddd First
Congregational Soclety all our right, title and interest in and to the
basement story of the Church building now occupiled by said society,
said basement having been occupled by said Inhabitants as and for a
Town Hall up to the date hereof, This deed is made in accordance with
the vote of said Inhabitants, at their last annual meeting authorizing
the Selectmen of said Town to take such action relative to the disposal
of the interest of said inhabitanys in said Hall as in their judgement
would be for the best interest of the Town, which vote at sald annual
meeting dated March 17th 1884, was as follows, viz: Woted, that the
subject matter in said article (16) be referred to the Seiectmen, with
authority to dispose of the rights or interest of the town in the old
Town Hall at the centre of the tOWﬂ.....g.....“

June 19, 1884 Signed
Auvg, 30, 1884 Witnessed
Septe. 6, 1884 Recorded
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Chelpsford Newsweekly (1955): April 1887

"Since the relinquishment by the town in 1885 of its Interest in the
0ld town hall, which is the basement of the Unitarian Church, the
ladies of the society have been assiduously working to obtain means
by fairs and entertainments to remodel the room and fit it up for
parish purposese One familiar with the old hall, with its bare walls,
meagre furnishings and generally grimy appear ance, would fail to
recognize in the neat and attractive rcoms the dingy resort not inaptly
termed 'the cellar! where for nearly forty years the citlzens met Iin
annual btown meetings to fight their municipal battles, Want of space
will permit but a brief description of the transformation which has
been brought about by the labors of the carpentep, paintery and paper
hanger, supplemented by the tasteful adornments provided by the ladies
of the soclety. While the original entrance to the hall has been
retained, a new one has been made by a stairway from the churche
Descending this one lands in the kitchen, which 1s the former
selectmen's room, enlarged, and with its commodious pantry, dish
closets, numerous drawers and other appointments, is the pride of our
thrifty housekeepers. Upon the right of the main entrance to the hall
is an ample cloak room, The auditorium, with its papered ceiling and
walls, new chandeliers and handsomely framed plctures (two of the latter
being a gift of the Misses Richardson) 1is a very cose and attractive
room and will seat comfortabdably 200 persons. At the north end is a
raised platform with folding doors which is designed primarily for
the ladies! parlor, and with its handsome carpet and drapery curtains
presents a very homelike appearance,

The formal opening of dedication occurred Wednesday evening and
was attended by reprementatiges of the several religlous societles
in the village. Mre. J.A. Bartlett presided and after a brief review -
of the history of the ancient parish, happily introduced the speakers,
Revse Je.Ae Chase, pastor of the soclety, C.C. Hussey of Billerica,
James Danforth of Tyngsborough, Je.L. Seward of Lowell and Mre E.H.
Warren of Chelmsford. THe remarks of the speakers were quite fellecitous
and deservedly complimentary to the ladies. A just tribute was also
paid by Mr. Seward to the admirable work which in various directions
is being done by Reve Mr. Chase, Excellent instrumental music was
furnished by Dre A. Howard and Miss Mabel P, Emerson, and a vocal
selection, !Curfew Bells' by a quartette consisting of Messers,
Harry Le Parkhurst and Frank A, Emerson, Mrs. Harry L. Parkhurst and
Miss Carrie Proctor, Two poems, written for the occasion, were read,
one composed by Mrs, Martha L. Emerson of Boxford, a natlive of
Chelmsford, and effectively read by Miss Celia Richardson, the other
read by its author, Mrs, Geos A, Parkhurst. At the conslusion of the
progremme a collation was served which terminated a most enjoyable
eveninge.



Unitarian Church
2 Westford St.

Page 53: Around the Unitarian Church  From notebook of Miss Frances Andrews

Was an uneven, barren, waste of landessceeseNO Sreen 1awnSeeesenO
Shrubbery,ssseen0 graded walks,.eesno hardened roadbedsS.e.sebut diverse
ruts, through drifting sands and rolling stones.

(See Chelmsford Eagle, Jan. 1, 1876)

A subscription was started by the villagers and the V.I.Ae to grade
the hill from the church to the depot; lay out walks and plant
shrubberye

Lowell Weekly Journal

Jan. 4, 1887 - Remodelling the basement of the Unitarian church for a
vestry is well underway. A.W. Holt has the contract.

Oct. 15, 1887

Since the relinquishment by the town in 1885 of its interest in the 0ld town
hall, which is the basement of the Unitarian church, the ladies of the society
have been assiduously working to obtain means by fairs and entertainments to
remodel the room and fit it up for parish purposes. One familiar with the old
hall, with its bare walls, meagre furnishings and generally grimy appearance,
would fail to recognize in the neat and attractive rooms the dingy resort not
inaptly termed “"the cellar,”" where for nearly forty years the caétizens met in
annual town meeting to fight their municipal battles. Want of space will
permit but a brief description of the transformation which has been brought
about by the labors of the carpenter, painter and paper hanger, supplemented
by the tasteful adornments provided by the ladies of the society. While the
original entrance to the hall has been retained, a new one has been made by
a stairway from the church. Descending this one lands in the kitchen, which
is the former selectmen's room, enlarged, and with its commodious pantry,
dish closets, numerous drawers and other appfointments, is the pride of our
thrifty housekeepers. Upon the right of the main entrance to the hall is an
ample cloak room. The auditorium, with its papered ceiling and walls, new
chandeliers and handsomely-framed pictures (two of the latter being the gift
of the Misses Richardson), is a very cosy and attractive room, and will
comfortably seat 200 people. At the north end is a raised platform with
folding doors, which is designed primarily for a ladies' parlor, and with its
handsome carpet and drapery curtains presents a very homelike appearance.
The formal opening or dedication occurred Wednesday evening and was attended
by representatives of the several religious societies of the village.......

July 20, 1888 - The interior of the Unitarian church is to be remodelled
the present season, and the work will be pushed forward as rapidly as
possible this summer.

Aug. 3, 1888 - A.W. Holt has the contract for the remodelling of the
Unitarian church. This will include re-arrangement of the pews, lowering
and enlargement of the pulpit platform, a room on each side of the desk,

a reduction of the size of the gallery and of the windows. The walls and
ceiling are to be papered and there will be an additional aisle. The choir
loft will be changed from the present location to the right of the desk.

A new carpet will be provided, and these modifications with others of a
minor character will make the auditorium ohe of the most attractive in
this vicinity.



Lowell Weekly Journal
Unitarian Chmrch

Nov. 16, 1888 Interior Improvements - An Attractive Auditorium

The improvemats upon the interior of the Unitarian church at Chelmsford,
which hve been in progress since the first of August, are now substantially
completed, and a desecription of the important changes which appear in the
modernized auditorium will, it is thought, possess a special interest for
many former residents of the town who will be gratified to learn of this
evidence of vitality and progress in the venerable soclety with which they
were connected in earlier years. According to tradition and history the
meeting house is the fourth which has stood upon or near the present site and
is in the direct line of succession from the original structure which was
erected in 1654, and probably constructed of logs, as the first saw mill was
not &n operation until 1656. The other meeting houses bear date as follows:
1712, 1792 and 1842. The third house, as our older citizens well remember,
was destroyed by fire which was supposed to be of inciéndiary origin. Thus
much in the historical line.

Beginning our notice of the changes with the vestibule, we find that
the o0ld Sunday school library has been removed and the walls neatly papered.
There are now three entrances to the auditorium, a wide one in the centre
with double swinging door being an addition. These of course corrsepond in
location with the aisles, of which there were formerly but two. A portion of
the large gallery over the vestibule has been removed, but there are still
seating accommodations for about fifty persons. The establishment of side
aisles has placed the wall pews nearer the centre of the house, thus making
them in some reppects more desireable than before. The pews are placed on a
curvilinear line, a position which has obvious advantages. The o0ld seats are

retained with such modifications as the new arrangement necessitated. The
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cuyshions have received a new coVWering of olive damask, the work of the ladies
of the society, and with the skilful work of the painter's brush, the pews
have the appearance of newness in harmony with their surroundings. Perhaps

the most striking shange has been made in the pulpit and its vicinity. The
pews upon either side, once the most eligible in the church, but latterlx
shunned on account of their conspicuous location, have been removed, and*Bhiér
place is substituted on the left, a room for the pastor, and upon the right,
the choir loft with ample recess left for a pipe organ, which is one of the
appointments the future has in store. At this end of the house are three
arches in gothis style, the central and larger forming the pulpit recess and
bearing the inscription "Deal Justly, Love Mercy, Walk Humbly with Thy God;"
over the left arch are the words "Serve the Lord with Gladness," and the

right bears the injunction, "Oh Sing Praises Unto the Lord." The pulpit
platform has been brought down nearer to a level with the pews, and nothing
has been retained of its accessories except the desk, a concession to the
conservative spirit of some of the older members. Modern pulpit chairs

replace the old time long sofa, which gave one the ippression that the single
occupant must feel lonesome. Another marked transformation is seen in the

new windows. While there is no change in the size, it is reduced in appearance
by the introduction of a perpendicular centre bar, and an arched top in
gothic style. The centre lights are of clear glass with border of small
colored panes, giving a very pleasant effect without the obscuration esometimes
described as "a dim religious light,” which is full often a trial to the
eyesight of the worshipper. There is but one memorial window and that is in
the old choir gallery. It is given in remembrance of the late Dr. J.C.
Bartlett, for more than 30 years chorister of the church, and is a tribute of
the esteem from past members of the choir who were associated with him. The
lower half of the window in appearance resembles the main windows above
described. Upon tne upper half are two musical instruments crossed and upon
these rests an upen book. Below in a scroll appear the words, "In Memoriam,
John C. Bartlett."

The facilities for lighting the church are excellent. There is a large
central chandelier with 12 burners, and in each corner is suspended a Rocheste:
lamp which gives a very strong lizht. There is also a lamp over the desk and
the choir is similarly lighted. Both walls and ceiling are papered, the tint
of the former being an orange terra cotta which imparts a warmth of tone not
secured by a white or drab surface. A new carpet harmonizing in color with
its surroundings completes our inventory of the appointments of the attractive
auditorium. Materlals or labor were supplied by the following individuals or
firms: Carpenter work, A.W. Holt; painting and pdfeing, W.H. Spalding & Co.,
Lowell; indovs, Amasa Pratt & Co., Lowell; memorial window, W.I. McPherson,
Eoston; pulpit furniture and carpet, Adams & Co., Lowell., The committes in
charge of the work, Mrs. J.M. Fletcher, Mrs. Wm. Fletcher and Mr, J.A.
Bartlett, have given most faithful service and may well -felicitate themselves
upor. the results, In recognitior. of the importance and the completiop of

this society enterprise there will be public services in the church Yednesday

evening, 24st inst.



First Parish Unitarian Church
Westford Street

Chelmsford "Newswelkly" (1955): First Parish Congregational (Unitarian) Sociebty

"pAg the first and for many years the only church in town, the Flrst
Congregational (Unitariang Church has a long history inextricably
connected with that of the town. After this year, only the members of -
the Society contributed toward the support of the ministrye. Previously,
every inhabitant was expected to pay his 'mimistrial tax,!

The present building is the fourth to stand on tgis site amd was
constructed in 1842, The town built the brick basement of the building
and until the Town Hall was built in 1879, thils basement was used for
town meetings and various public gatherings. It is interesting to find
that in 1876 the steeple blew down amd-im about 1910 it was struck by
1ightning 'which followed the chain and weight of the clock! == an
accident which recurred on June 13, 1955, Plans are now completed
for restoring the steeple and for building a parish at the rear of the
church building, Work is expected to begin in October, Several years
ago the former home of Mre & Mrs. Walter J.E. Martel at Putnam Avenue
and First Street was purchased as a parsonage but sold when Miss Susan
Se MeFarlin bequethed her home in 1950 for t hat purpose. This too was
later sold, and the present parsonage at 43 Acton Road purchased., Many
changes have been made through the years in both the church auditorium
and the vestry, Among recent gifts to the Socilety is the Wurlltzer
organ, given by Gerald M. Kennedy, in memory of his wife, the late
Dorothy Kennedy Emerson, in 1950. '

Active organizations of the Socipty are the Evening Alliance, the
Women's Alliance, the Liberal Heligious Youth group, the Men's Club and
the Unitarian Players, a dramatlc groupe '

Pastors of the ancient church have been: Rev, John Fisk, 1655-16763
Rev, Thomas Clark, 1677-1704; Rev. Sampson Stoddard, 1708-1740; Reve
Ebenezer Brildge, i741-1792%; Rev, Hezekiah Packard, 1793=18023 Rev,
Wilkes Allen, 1803-18323; Rev, William Andrews, 1836=18383 Reve John
Lowls Russell, ;840-1842,.

Rev, Darius Forbes, 1844-1845; Rev, Frederick F, Thayer, 1845-1847;
Reve Charles W. Mellen, 1849-1853; Rev, William Morse, L854-i856; Reve
Russell A, Ballou, 1856=- 1858; Rev, Horace W. Morse, 1860-1867; Rev,
Fiske Barrett, 1867-1869; Rev. Frederlck W, Webber, 1870-1872; Rev.
Duane V., Bowen, 1872-1874; Rev. Ezeklel Fitzgerald, 1874-1876; Rev,
James J. Twiss, 1876=1879; Rev, Andrew M. Sherman, 1879-188l; Rev,
Daniel F. Goddard, ;882-18833; Rev. Joseph A, Chase, 1885-1891; Rev,
Granville Plerce, 1892-1901; Reve Alfred D.K. Shurfleff, 1901-1907;
Rev. Lorenzo Le Greene, 1907-1927; Rev, Lyman M, Greenman, 1928; Reve
Floyd J. Taylor, Rev, Edward Cahill, Rev. Karl Bach, Rev. Percy Brayton,
Rev. Joseph Giunta, Rev, Philip Larson,"
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Chelmsford "Neweekly" (1955): Women's Alliance, First Parish Unitarian

"Before the War of the Rebellion there was a society kmown as the Ladles
Charitable Soclety, composed of ladies of all denominations; the original
object was to wor ror any worthy causes presented by any of the ladles.

When it passed out of existence 1is not really certain = but there
had been a Ladles Soclety for many years, There was one connected with
the Unitarlan Church that met once a year to elect officers to enable
it to hold trust funds, These funds were drawn out and the Socilety
disbanded in 1876,

During the war of the Rebellion (1860), there was a Soldiers Aid
Soclety composed of members  of the differen £ religious socletles, Later
there was a 'Freedman's'Ald, and still later a 'Westerm Ald' of the great
tChicago Fire'! in 1871, These socleties, having some definite object
after the time of need, usually passed out of existence,

The present socie ;y, which was probably organized sometime between
1866-1868, has no existing records but presumably came to 1life in the
latter part of the fall of 1868,

The Freedman'!s Ald Soclety was about to disband, A social and
supper was held at Parkhurst's Hall (then standing where the flagman's
house now 1s),

The ladles had been in the hablt of meeting regualrly and felt the
need of some social organization, Mrs, Joseph Reed suggested that the
ladies of the Unitarian Soclety should have a society of their own,

The matter was talked oWer, and being favorably receiwed, a meeting
was called to be held at the house of Dr, Bartlett, The result of this
meeting was the formation of the present Ladles! €ircle, with Mrs,
Maria Bartlett as president, Mrs. Emma L. Buzzell, vice president

Mrse. Clorinda H, Paridhurst, secretary and treasurer, which had a iarge
membership, The original object of the soclety was %o work for any -
deserving charity which might be presented and also to hold-socilals,
The money went toward fitting up the town hall for a vestry, whenever
the Parish Committee could purchase it from the tow,

Meetings of the society were held on Wednesday aftermoons once
every two weeks, at the home of some member, Attendance was always
large.

Durfing the winterz months suppers were held. The gentlemen
invited and accepted and with a general social 1n the evening, a very
good time was enjoyed until nine or ten o'clock, These soclals are looked
back to with a great deal of pleasure by the older members of the
parish,

In the latter part of the year 1875 it was voted to take the funds
of the charitables soclety and purchase crockery, ‘This was done in
Febrmmry, 1876, at a cost of somewhere over $100,00, The charitable
soclety, having met once a year to elect-officers, was thén disbanded,
This crockery, with additions since made, 1s still in use,

After purchasing the crockery sociais were héld in the town hall
untili 1880, when the present town hall was built, From 1880 to 1886
the ladies met during the winter in the lower town hall or more
appropriately named, the supper room,

During the year of 1886 the old town hall was purchased from the
town by the standing committee of the Unitarian Soélety, Mr. Perley
Perham and Mr, Adams Bartlett acted for the Parish,

At the Annual Meeting of the Ladles! Soclety on Novemeber 3, 1886
at the home of the presldent, MMrs, Joseph Fletcher, 1t was voted to
engage a carpenter to ldock over the hall to see what the cost of fitting
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it up as a vetsry would be, within their means, Mr, Almon Holt was
engaged to do the work, and on April 13, 1887 the Ladiles' Parlor and
Vestry was dedicated; the entire cost being about $519.62. The money
was raised by fairs, entertainment and by private donations,

Mrs. Joseph Fletcher had a large part of the work and other troubles
incident to such responsibllitye. To her, due credit should be given
for our now very enjoyable vestry,

Previous to this, two furnaces had been placed in the basement at
a cost of $406,00,

One important feature not directly connected with the Ladies!
Circle was remodeling of the church in 1888, The committee included Mrse
Eliza Ae Fletcher, Mrs, Harriet Bartlett, Mrs, Emma Buzzell and Mrs,
Louise C. Howard, in connection with the Parish Committee,

Through the effemts of Mrs, Buzzell and Mrs, Fletcher the larger
part of the money was raided by subscriptions; the impetus sermon by
their pastor, Reverend Josepg Ae. Chase was followed by the eamnest and
indefatigable efforts of Mrs, Bartlette, The church was rededicated
November 21, 1888,

The prosperlty of the Parish commenced at that time and contibhued
to the present date, .

The hard work of the society commenced with their first fair, which
was held October 31, 1883, netting the society $119.42. In addition to
fairs there were rummage sales, socials, dinners, etce

I will mention a few of the most imporbdént donations of the circle:

To the Sunday School Library, $50.00; Piano for Vestry, $285,00;

To Church Organ Fund in 1906, $100,003 Toilet room and other repairs,
$196362; and lastly, in 1913 repairing church, $750,00,

Many years the ladles furnished flowers for the church, commencing
in 1892,

In 1895 through the Bfforts of Miss Emma J., Stevens, then presldent,
the Ladies Sewing Circle joined the National Allliance,

In 1909 a very substantial donation was received from the will of
Miss Mary Reedj; the interest to be used for church purposes, The larger
part of the work of the Society has been the making of articles for
fairs held annually,

Outside of Parish work, they made garments for t he 'Ministry at
Large'! in Lowell and also for the needy. At one time, bags of clothing
went to Morgan Memorial in Boston and Barrels of clothing to the
colored schools in the Southy the expenses being too great to be
continued,

For a number of years a sum of money has been sent to the
American Unitarian Association.

At one time, each lady attending the meetings paid five cents,
with twenty-five cents annual duesy later, it was twenty £ive cents
dues, and five cents for every absentee., Nifher rule being very
popular, both were soon discardedesscssessso”



Lowell Daily Courier

Nov. 16, 1903 - At the Unitarian Church Sunday morning, the services
werzoof a épeciglly commemorative character, 'he date was the 100th
anniversary of the ordination of Rev. Wilkes Allen as pastor of the
church, his first settlement and which embraced 29 years of active
devoted service. The last year of his residence here was 1834.

Speaking of the physical characteristics of his ancestor, hls.
~randson Rev. Charles A. Allen of Waverly, said he was short, thick
Eet with a larze head, and his manners were grave as became a person

of that period.

Dece 4, 1903 = The work of equlpping the Unltarian Church for
lighting by gas 1is practically completed, Next wlll come the
introduction of water into the basement,

Lowell Courier-Citizen

Auge 53 1908 = At a parish meetlng of the Unltarian Society held in the church
vestry at 7:30 this evening it was voted to make the propsed change in the
location of the Bartlstt memorisl window subject to the actlion of a future
meeting of the Ladies Circle and Alliance, which is to have the matter im
charge, Plans for the alteration were submitted by Architect E.R. Clarke and
met with the hearty approval of the executive cormittee,

Dec. 6, 1912 - Within a few days, a definite, public location of the key

to the Unitarian church, to be used in gaining entrance to sound an alarm
of fire, will have been established. Responding to a request made by Ralph
P. Adams, chief of the local fire depattment, the standing committee of the
Unitarian stéciety have granted permission for the placing of the needed

box near the door at the left, on the front of the church. Another box, also
to have a key, is to be placed on the fire house. These boxes, which are to

have a front of glass and are to be broken when the key is needed, are now
being made by E.R. Marshall.

Jgne 29, 1913 - Concluding with the service today, the Unitarian church
will remain closed until September. During this time, plans for remodeling
and redecorating the interior of the edifice, that have been prepared by
Architect Edwin R. Clark, will be carried out.



Dec. 3, 1913 - T'he alterations being made in the auditorium of the Unitar-
ian church are nearly completion. Five men began this morning on laying
the floor, the final stage of the work.

Dec. 4, 1913 - Little more carpentry remains to be done in the alterations
at the Unitarian church. The floor of the auditorium was completed last
week and it is probable that services in the church will be resumed on
Sunday, Dec. 21.

Jan. 4, 1914 - A large congregation attended the service at the Unitarian
church this morning, used for the first time since an entire renovation of
the auditorium was started in July. The result achieved is altogether pleas-
ing to the people and of much credit to the committee appointed. In all its
parts, the changed wrought are along the Colonial lines, in keeping with
the architecture of the building. Windows of the above pattern have replaced
those in the puipisy-adding-mue sides and a new triple window has been
placed in the wall at the rear of the pulpit, adding much to the lighting
conditions. The gallery has been extended to a position occupied previous
to changes made about 25 years ago, and the pipe organ, formerly at the
right of the pulpit, is now placed there. A wall to match that on the
opposite side of the pulpit, conceals the space where the organ used to
stand. The memorial window to Dr. J.C. Bartlett, for many years organist

of the society, has been placed in the center window at the entrance to

the church. The treatment of the ceiling and walls is especially harmonious
and pleasing, the ceiling being in soft shades of brown and the walls
paneled in a similar color. The woodwork throughout is painted white, a
cornice softeming the lines between walls and ceiling. Electricity has been
installed, the indirect system with four large alba globes suspended by
chains serving amply for lighting the body of the church, wall lights in
the gallery and a shaded light above the pulbpit. In changing the location
of the organ, need was found of altering its appearance to conform with

the increased space allotted to it. It was remodelled and enlarged to meet
the requirements under the direction of W.D. Goodwin of Lowell. The case
has been finished in mahongany and the pipes, formerly silvered, are now
gilded. The pulpit and furnishings are also finished in mahogany. The old
pews, with the unsanitary cushions banished and fitted and most comfortable
seats of wood in their stead, have been retained. A florr of beechwood has
been laid throughout, covered between the aisles and upon the stairs and
floor of the pulpit with carpet in subdued tones of green. Plans for the
alterations were made by architect Edwin R. Clark and the committee in

charge were composed of Arthur M. Warren, Mrs. Walter Perham, Mrs. Leroy
J. Parkhurst, Miss Abbie Ford, and Harry L. Parkhurst.

May 23, 1916 - The roadway between Littleton and Westford streets, passing
between the Unitarian church building and horsesheds has been closed to
travel in accordance with a vote taken at the last annual meeting.



Lowell Courier-Citizen

Dec. 3, 1813 - The alterations being made in the auditorium of the Unitarian church are nearing completion.
Five men began this morning on laying the floor, the final stage of the work.

Dec. 4, 1913 - Little more carpentry remains to be done .in the alterations at the Unitarian church. The floor
of the auditorium was completed last week and it is probable that services in the church will be resumed on
Sunday, Dec. 21. )

Jan. 2, 1914 - The morning services of the Unitarian society next Sunday will be held in the church for the
first time since it was closed for alterations last July.

Jan. 4, 1914 - A large congregation attended the service at the Unitarian church this morning, used for the
first time since an entire renovation of the auditorium was started in July. The result acheived is
altogether pleasing to the people and of much credit to the committee appointed. In all its parts, the
changes wrought are along the Colonial lines, in keeping with the architecture of the building. Windows of
the above pattern have replaced those in the sides and a new triple window has been placed in the wall at the
rear of the pulpit, adding much te the lighting conditions. The gallery has been extended to a position
occupied previous to changes about 25 years agoe, and the pipe organ, formerly at the right of the pulpit,
is now placed there. A wall to match that on the opposite side of the pulpit, conceals the space where the
organ used to stand. The memorial window to Dr. J. C. Bartlett, for many years organist of the society, has
been placed in the center window at the entrance to the church. The treatment of the ceiling and walls is
especially harmonious and pleasing, the ceiling being in soft shades of brown and the walls paneled in a
similar color. The woodwork throughout is painted white, a cornice softening the lines between walls and
ceiling. Electricity has been installed, the indirect system with four large alba globes suspended by chains
serving amply for lighting the body of the church, wall lights in the gallery and a shaded light above the
pulpit. In changing the location of the organ, need was found of altering its appearance to conform with the
increased space allotted to it. It was remodelled and enlarged to meet the requirements under the direction
of W. B. Goodwin of Lowell. The case has been finished in mahogany and the pipes, formerly silvered, are now
gilded. The pulpit and furnishings are also finished in mahogany. The old pews, with the unsanitary cushions
banished and fitted with most comfortable seats of wood in their stead, have been retaimed. A floor of
beechwood has been laid throughout, covered between the aisles and upon the stairs and floor of the pulpit
with carpet in subdued tones of green. Plans for the alterations were made by architect Edwin R. Clark and
the committee in charge were composed of Arthur M. Warren, Mrs. Walter Perham, Mrs. Leroy J. Parkhurst, Miss
Abbie Ford, and Harry L. Parkhurst.

Newspaper Clipping - Alliance Scrapbook
September G, 1828

A number of changes being made in the lower part of the Unitarian church will add greatly to the
convenience of the members. The kitchen has been enlarged and newly finished throughout and a large soap-

stone sink with ample drying space has been placed in the centre of the room.

New closets and several windows have been added to the vestry and will give added light and also may be
used for serving. A stair-way has been built from the upper vestibule into the lower, a much needed addition,
as the old one brought guests through the kitchen from the auditorium to the supper room, a method that was

not convgnient for the workers at a supper.

The old boiler room has been partly added to the kitchen space and the small coat room partition has
been taken away, making a better entrance hall. On Wednesday the members of the Women's Alliance spent the
day putting things to rights and getting the vestry ready for painting. Today the men of the parish turned
out and gave the vestry a needed coat of paint. The room will be ready For the church services which open

Sunday.



Old Unitarian church horse sheds
moved to rear of 39 Chelmsford
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First Congregational Church, Center Chelmaford, Mass

e Dex L First Meeting House wus built about 1680,

scond in 1742, thee Third in 1792, The Present Meeting
House wan bullt in J842
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HISTORY

This religious society was first gathered in Wenham in 1644, In 1655,
the Church with its minister, John Fiske, removed to Chelmsford.

The first meeting house was built upon this present site.

In 1710 a new meeting house was erected and later a belfry was added
in which to place a bell purchased in 1680,

It was not until 1830 that the separation of town and parish took place
and the [ollowing year the parish elected its own officers distinct from town
officials and became self su ing. The basement of the church building
however was still used as the Town Hall until 1879,

The present meeting house was erected in 1842 after a fire had destroyed
the old Meeting House.

On Sunday morning, December 18, 1955 a ground breaking ceremony
was held and construction of our present addition began. A year later this
addition was completed and dedicated to the glory of God and to the service
of man on Sunday, September 23, 1956.

The unity of our members, their sacrificial devotion and dedication have
brought us to this day.

Minister: Roland Ellsworth Morin, Diploma, School of the Museum of
Fine Arts, Boston; BS. Ed., Tufts University; B.D. Crane
Theological School, Tufts University.

The manse is located at 143 High Street, Tel, 2566255,
Office hours in the Minister's Study, Monday, Thursday and
Friday 9:30 AM. to 12 Noon and at other times by appointment.

Secretary: Mrs. Wilfred Leach. Hours in Secretary's office, Thuraday
and Friday from 8:30-12, Church telephone: 256-5138,

The corporate name of this society is, The First Congregational Society
(Unitarian) of Chelmsford, Massachusetts and it is a member of the Uni-
;m‘;n Universalist Association which is, “dedicated to the principle of a free
aith . ..in $

(1) To strengthen one anmother in a free and disciplined search for
truth ms the foundation of our religious fellowship;

(2) To cherish and d the universal truths taught by the great
prophets and teachers of humanity in every age and tradition, im-
memorially summarized in the Judeo-Christian heritage as love to
God and love to man;

(3)To affirm, defend and promote the lu‘rr!:me wurth of every human
personality, the dignity of man, and the use of the democratic
method in human relationships;

(4) To implement our vision of one world by striving for a world
community founded on ideals of brotherhood, justice and peace;

{5) To serve the needs of member churches and fellowships, to ergan-
ize new churches and fellowships, and to extend and strengthon
liberal religion;

(6) To encourage cooperation with men of good will in every land.”

Sunday Worship 10:45 A M.
Children's Chapel Worship Service 10:30 AM.

FOURTH MEETING HOUSE
DEDICATED APRIL 13. 1843

OF THE
First Congregational Society
(Unitarian)

of
Chelmsford, Massachusetts
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Chelmsford clock
reported in trouble

CHELMSFORD—The town clock is in trouble,
according to the Chelmsford Historic Commission.

The structure thal supports the old clock has
worn down “'to the point where it is dangerous,"
Chairman Audrey Carragher bas reported to the
selectmen. The commission has requested that the
condition be corrected before ‘‘serious deteriora-
tion occurs."”

An article requesting funds to repair the strue-
lure is expected to be added to the list of town

. meeting articles,

o
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ForRichard Lahve,

time is a factor...

By GARY DORION
Sun Staff "

CHELMSFORD — "Ever since 1
was & kid, [ always watched the clock
whenever I passed through the
square and I always wanted to go up
and take a close look at it." saye
Richard Lahue, Jr., currently the
town clockwinder,

"It only takes about 20 minutes to
erank it up, he said. "And there's not
a heck of a lot to it, although it takes
a little bit of backwork and armwork
in the cranking.”

Lahue, 38, is married, has three
kids, and he's been climbing the
stairs to the attic of the Unitarian
Church each Sunday for the past four
years to wind the old clock.

WHEN HE ASSUMED the job in
1876, he replaced Robert C. Spauld-
ing who had held it since 1952 when
he had succeeded Arthur Wells.

According to Lahue, "there's only
been about eight different people, as
far as I can figure, who have run that
¢lock in the last hundred years. And
it's very satisfying to know that it's
still keeping good time."

Although the job pays just $100
annually, Lahue says he enjoys the
work — primanly because he is car-
rying on the century-old tradition.

"It's peaceful being there early
Sundsy morning, befare all the peo-
ple begin coming into church,” he
said. "And it's a way of taking an
interest in the town.”

Besides clockwinding, Lahue isa
rural postal carrier in Westford full
time, and he delivers newspapers in
Acton éach day as well as dabbling in
a local antique business.

"1 started work when 1 was eleven
atold Henry Eriksen's General Store
and I've been with him ever since,”
he said referring to the antique col-
Aector.

The four-sided town elock in Cen-
trul Square has stopped only once
during the time Lahue has been
clockwinder and that ocurred during
the "Blizzard of 1978 He said that
snow got pucked on its northern face
which blocked the movement of the
hands:

But except for that instance, it has
kept accurate time, he said,

“IT*S JUST LIKE 2 big wrist
‘watch, that's all it is. And for being
“over 100 years old, it's in damn good

shape.” he said.

The clock was originally installed
at the base of the steeple in 1876
According to historical accounts, the

ople gathered in front of the

church to dedicate their new village

L

RICHARD LAHUE, JR.

the Lowell Weekly Journal, “Last
week the village clock located in the
loft of the Unitarian Church refused
to strike, and for & very weighty
reason,

"Wednesday evening," continued
the report, "the steel wire rope hold-
ing the striking weight, whose avair-
dupomgs 1100 pounds gave way, and
the solid mass of iron came down
with a erash about 30 feet"

However. the report continued
that "no particular damage was
done.”

In subsequent years, lightni
struck the steeple at least tgim'.ul?g
latter time the dsy after the final
event of Chelmsford’s Tercentenial
celebration where the bolt shattered
the steeple but tuckily spared the
clock.

Around 1892, at the request of the
Village Clock Association, the town
meeting appropriated $30 for fts
maintenance and has made succes-
#ive appropriations ever since.

At the 1955 annual town meeling,
the townspeople granted the land to
the church “excepting and reserving,
nevertheless, unto the granter and
its assigns, full and free right and
liberty at all reasonable times to en-
ter the church, located on the

nted premises to wind, repair and
maintain the clock located in the bel-
fry of said church.”

ACCORDING TO LAHUE, the

clock will run non-stop for about
seven-and-one-half days and, with
the proper care. he says it will prob-

-ably run forever,

It chimes every hour on the hour
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I elock i

‘in'May of the same year.

The following yeur.  private orga-
nization was formed that went by the
name of the Village Clock Associa-
.uonandummdmmwb“iwﬁr
upkeep of the clock. :

The clock has managed to with-
stand three accidents over the years.
‘according to secounts. In 1887, as re-
pumd by ﬁle L'hﬁmhfdrd Nmu of!

""" R |3 S

ahd, peieraily, he only mainie
nance it needs is a coat of paint
periodically and an oiling twice &

year =

ou know,” Lahue said. ' pe?
look up at that old clock evi
when Jﬁhay pass hy qlthpm
mﬂhﬁnt ;t;:ad of th m
atitbutn e p
ably don't tﬁ somebody has
to ﬂmﬁ; up every ;ww nnd then.
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' HAPPY BIRTHDAY CHELMSF RD

BY SUE CARMAN

Chelmsford was an entirely different com-
munity (n 18786, Life was slower paced and
less commerciallzed. Activities were cen-
tered around the Common. Chelmsford
Street was lined with tree-shaded elegant
homes, Town meetings were held In the ves-
try of the Unitarian Churchas they had been
since the Incorporation of the Town. Town
Hall was only a vision 1o be realized In 1880,

In March of that year a great wind toppled
the steeple of the Unitartan Church, This
catastrophe spurred a group of public spi-

[Chelmsford Independent May 24, 1980 |

rited citizens to urge the installation of a
town clock in the newly constructed steeple.
Clocks were [ashionable in towns throug-
hout New England and served the basic
function of marking time for the commun-
ity. Before the era of nolse polution, states
Jard Davis, present Clerk of the Unitarian
Church, “one could hear the bell as faras Old
Westford Road.”

The commitiee raised funds by public
sybseription to finance the 8464 purchase
of the clock faces, mechanism and welghts.

No - the clock isn't upside down - but taking a photo of the clock in the tower at
the Unitarian Church in Chelmsford Center involved a bit of gymnastics on the
part of the photographer. (Photo by Vicki L. Pierce)

On May 17th of the same vear the new clock
was dedicated by the local citizens. The fol
lowing year. the committee turned over the
responsibility for maintenance of the clock
to & private corporation named The Village
Clock Assoctation. Those who had contrib-
uted to the purchase and maintenance of
the clock were shareholders Inthe company.
By 1892 the clock had become an integral
part of the community and the residents
voted the first town appropriation for the
care of the clock. a sum of thirty dollars.
Since that tmeclock maintenance hasbeen
part of the town budget. This year’s Town
miecting voted a line \tem of $525 for clock
("(')('I'ISQ"'.‘L

The clock and its mechanismare virtually
unchanged since their installation. The
hands on all four clock faces are driven by
long steel rods radiating from the central
mechanism. Power s suppled by heavy
welghts hung on chains or steel cable des-
cending into hollow columnson the porch ol
the Church. Two' separate weighits, both
boxes [llled with stones. regulate the clock
mechanism and the clapper of the bell. The
dlock 18 still wound on a weekly basis using
the muscles of Richard Lahue Jr. Several
vears ago the clock had to be wound twice a
week because the timbers used to shore up
the listing and decaying steeple obstructed
the descent of the weights A simple turning
of the timbers allowed clearance for the
welghts,

The bell attached to the clack is the prop-
erty of the church. Inaddition to striking the
hours, the bell has served a variety of func-
tions. It has been used to toll at funeralsand
to announce the beginning of church servi-
ces. It was rung to commemorate significant
events. like the passage of the Volstead Act
{prohibition) in 1919. The bell served as the
town fire bell until the 1920°s when the Fire
Department Installed a whistle on Town
Hall. A fire box was located on the porch of
the church containing a key to the front

heing a part of the Chelmsford Historie Dis-

r e

door. Anyone who knew of a fire copld break
the glass. enter the church.and ringthe beil.

Today the clock is in excellent working
order. It was last cleaned and repainted for
the bicentennial In 1975 In 1980 the
church, cack and burying ground, as well as

trict Commission. were officially entered as
landmarks in the American Historio Regls-
ter.

Appreciation goes to Jard Davis and
George Parkhurst for their research and
personal recollections.

An inside view of the workings of the
clock in the tower of the Unitarian
Church in Chelmsford Center - one of
few in the country. (Photo
by Vicki L. Pierce)
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First Parish
Church Observes

325th Anniversary

CMFD-The public is invited to
f._in in eelil;ra the 325th an-

niversary ord's First
Parish  Church

on Friday,
November 14, and on Sunday,
November 186, Situated on the town
common in Chelmsford center, the
present church building is in the
same location chosen by the first
settlers. Remarkably, in this era of
rapid change and growth, this
church still has in its congregation
several active members who are
_direct 15th generation descendents
“of its founders,

!‘e&;‘d amt:ri:ru institutions ha::
survi t alone prospered,
Jong. ’I'he United States is itself
only 205 years old, rare businesses

areolder than a hundred years and
~only a {few structures date back to

the 17th century. But
ations such as that of the

a living link to
the events and people that shaped
Chelmsford's First Parish
Church starts its 325th celebration
at 8 pm. on Friday night,
November 14th, with a program
feliunng past ministers Douglas
srton , Philip Larson and Roland

n as well as Dr. David Pohl

from the Unitarian Universalist
Mtnciatmn in Boston. Following
the program, the public is invited

to attend a reception and view an
exhibition of historic items from
the church’s extensive collections.

On Sunday, November 16th, a
special service drawing from three
centuries of rich religious heri
will be celebrated. Members of
congregation in period costume
will reenact scenes that would
have been comman in the church in
1655, 1755, and 1855, The public is
cordially invited to attend this
unigue service.

The church traces its
from 1652 when a tenacious group
of pioneers moved from their
comfortable surroundings in
Woburn and Concord lo the nor-
thwestern wildnerness country on
the Merrimack beyond the Con-
cord River. To legitimize their
settlement they convinced Rev,
John Fiske from Wenham to settle
in their new community on the
frontier. On November 12, 1635, the
First Congational Sociely of
Chelmsford was chartered and the
first meeting house was built in
1659,

325 years, four meeting houses
and thirty-four ministers later, the
continued presence of the church is
a {ribute to its adaptability,
Originally, it was very much in the
Massachusetts puritan tradition. It
weathered e Unitarian/ -
Trinitarian controversy of the
1800's, the protests of the 1960's and
evolved to the theologically liberal
Unitarian Universalist

congregation.of 1900,
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First Parish celebrates 325th year

The public Is Invited to join in celebrating the 325th
anniversary of Chelmsford's First Parish Church on
Friday, November 14, and on Sunday, November 16.
Situnted on the town common in Chelmsford center,
the present church bullding is In the same location
chosen by the first settlers. Remarkably, in this era of
rapid change and growth. this church still has In its
congregation several active members who are direct
15th generation descendents of its founders.

Few American institutions have survived. let alone
prospered. this long. The United States is (tself only
205 years old, rare businesses are older than a
hundred years and only a few structures date back to
the 17th century. But congregations such as that of
the First Parish provide a living link to the events and
people that shaped our town and country.

Chelmsford's First Parish Church starts its 325th
celebration at 8 PM on Friday night. November 14th,
with a program featuring past ministers Douglas
Brayton, Philip Larson and Roland Morin as well-as Dr
David Pohl from the Unttarfan Universalist
Association In Boston. Following the program, the
public is invited to attend a reception and view an
exhibition of historic ftems from the church's
extensive collections.

On Sunday. November 16th, a special service
drawing from three centuries of rich religious heritage
will be celebrated. Members ol the congregation In
period costumes will reenact scenes that would have
been common in the church In 1655. 1755and 1855,
The public iIs cordially Invited to attend this unique
service.

The church traces its beginnings from 1652 whena
tenacious group of ploneers moved from their
comfortable surroundings in Wobum and Concord to
the northwestern wilderness cauntry on the
Merrimack beyond the Concord River. To legitimize
their settiement they convinced Rev. Johin Fiske from
Wenham to settle In their new communtity in the
frontier. On November 12, 1655, the First
Congregational Soctety of Cheimsford was chartered
and the first meeting house was bullt in 1659,

325 years, four meeting houses and thirty-four
ministers later, the continued presence of the church
Is a tribute to Its adaptability. Originally, 1t was very
much In the Massachusetts puritan tradition. It
weathered the Unitartan/Trinitarian controversy of
the 1800's, the protests of the 1960's. and evolved to
the theologically liberal Unitarian Universalist
congregation of 1980,

BIRTHDAY CELEBRATION Chelmsford's familiar landmark, the First
Parish Unitarian Church, will be celebrating its 325th birthday this
- "_IMLIWP : by ”ﬂrlif)
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TIME STANDS STILL Starting this week the
familiar town clock will be still while the |
steeple's condition is checked. (Phato by
Micki Hilliard)

Time will stand still
while steeple checked

By SUE CARMAN

Time will slow to a stancstill onall four faces of the
town clock atop the First Parish Unitarian Church
this Sunday sometime between 10 am. and 2 pm.,
estimates Richard Lahue Jr. the official clock winder
appointed by the town.

Lahue climbs up the steps of the church steeple
each Sunday morming te wind the ¢lock. both which
were funded by public subscription in 1876. But this
week--and perhaps for many weeks to come--his job Is
on hold at the request of the Building Inspector.

The sequence of events leading to the stilling of the -

town clock was triggered by the May 9th aceident
which seriously injured local contractor Ralph House,
According to the police report. he was inspecting the
steeple with Selectman Brad Emerson and Charlotte
DeWolfe, who are members of the church, when he
apparently slipped and fell through the overhang
flworing above the front doors to the granite steps
about 25 feet below

House was rushed to Lowell General Hospital where
it was ascertained he had sustained massive internal
Injuries requiring immediate surgery. He has
remained in the Intenstve Care Unit throughout the
week where his condition has gradually improved 1oa
Thursday hospital report of “stable”.

According to Arthur Hover, Unitarian Chureh
minister. the contractor had been requested (o look
ower the bullding to assess the need 1o reinforce the
steeple base for the town clock. This week. at the
church’s request. the American Steeple Company has

. begun an analysis of the structure and the massive

hand hewn supporting timbers, The two facing Town
Hall appear to be weakened by dry rot, he stated,

The overhang area which allegedly gave way under
House's weight Is located several feet below the steps
leading upward to the town clock.

The church has been planning to repair the deck
above the clock this year, Hover stated. to eliminate
water leaks which are trickling into the church btself.

Asa part of a long-term renovation project, the steeple
was repainted last year.

“Tm not.golng to condemn the bullding. there's no
reason for " asserted Building Inspector Ron
Wetmore after a midweek inspection of the:steeple,
“There is not an immediatedanger,” he continued. “we
don’t expect the tower (0 come crashing down.”

Contending that House's fall was "an accident”,
Wetmore emphasized that he bad requested. mther
than demanded, that church officials lock the
entrance to the steeple,

“We know we have a problem,” Wetmore stated,
explaining that he was most concerned about the
effect of vibrations from the bell and the church organ
on the weakened timbers. In addition to closing the
steeple area, he has requested that the church also not
use the cholr loft and the organ for the time being,

Selectman Brad Emerson stated Thursday that he
Intends to make a motion af the Selectmen’s meeting
an May 18th that the winding of the clogk be
suspended until repairs are made. “The conditions for
the elock winder are primitively crude.” he asserted, “jt
15 not a safe environment to send a town employee,

Emerson stated that the church is in the process of
detormining how much the repatrs will cost, After that
is completed, he added. they will Inftiate a townwide
fundraising campalgn to repalr the historie steeple,

“It's mare than a church problem.” Emerson
asserted. "it's a town project. a town responsibility.”

Ralph House. age 65, is a well known Chelmsford
resident who has been a bullding contractor for over
thirty vears. According fo Ron Wetmore who worked
with him for many years, the Chelmsford
Construction Compuny owned by House built many of
the custom homes located in South Chelmsford.

House is:a member of the Chelmsford Rotary Club
and was on the Park Commission for fifteen years, At
one time he was the chief of the South Chelmsioed
volunteer fire department.
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and Common, Chelmsford Center, Mass,

Fore-fathers’ Cemetery, Unitarian Church
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"2 Westford Street - First Parish Church



UNITARIAN CHURCH, CHELMSFORD, MASS.

The First Meeting House in Chelmsford was built on or near this
site about 1660.

Published by R. W. Emerson, Chelmsford, Mass.

Postcard courtesy of Paul Pettazoni



The Unitarian Church, Chelmsford, Mass.
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2 Westford Street - First Parish Church
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The fiest Meeting House was —
= . built about 1660. The second S
Smiemes s about 1712 , the third in 1792

| r ~ The present Meeting House ;e
| " wmm  Was built in 1842

2 Westford Street - First Parish Church 9/6/2004 F. Merriam



2 Westford Street - First Parish Church

12/27/2004 F.

Merriam



&\

o o {0
i #;’: "":'.dﬂ v ">,
2 Westford Street - First Parish Church | 10/18/2008 Don Miffitt




